
 

 

WINCHESTER REVITALIZATION COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING 
MONROE CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

300 W. CROWELL STREET 
MONROE, NORTH CAROLINA  28112 

NOVEMBER 6, 2025 – 3:00 PM 
AGENDA 

www.monroenc.org 
 
 

 
1. Call to Order – Chair/Councilwoman Anthony 

 
2. Welcome and Introductions Anthony 

 
3. Approval of Minutes – October 2, 2025 Regular Meeting Anthony 

 
 

STATUS AND UPDATES:  
 

4. Winchester Revitalization Updates Watson 
a) Winchester Clean Up/Ground Penetrating Radar Wells 
b) LandDesign Update 
c) Boundary Survey & Other Technical Document Updates Sholar 

 
5. Brownfield’s Environmental Status/Remnant Properties Update Sholar 

 
6. Winchester Ave High School - Historical Research/Canvas Photo Campo/Mendler 

 Design 
 

7. Discussion - Covering at Front of Winchester Community Center Hollowell 
 

8. Other Business (if any) Watson 
 

9. Adjourn  Anthony 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Next Meeting: December 4, 2025 @ 3:00pm 

Page 1 of 28

http://www.monroenc.org/


 

 
Winchester Revitalization Committee Regular Meeting 

October 2, 2025 
Page 1 

 

WINCHESTER REVITALIZATION COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING 
MONROE CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

300 W. CROWELL STREET 
MONROE, NORTH CAROLINA  28112 

OCTOBER 2, 2025 – 3:00 PM 
MINUTES 

 
 

The Winchester Revitalization Committee of the City of Monroe, North Carolina met in the City 
Hall Council Chambers located at 300 West Crowell Street in Monroe, North Carolina at 3:02pm 
on October 2, 2025 with Chair Surluta Anthony presiding. 
 
Members Present: Mayor Pro Tem Surluta Anthony (Chair), Mayor Robert Burns, Council 

Member Julie Thompson, Eric Hall, Eleanor McGinnis, Celestine Alsbrooks, 
and Clerk Angie Carnes 

 
Members Absent: Minnie Atwater 
 
Staff: City Manager (CM) Mark Watson, Assistant City Manager (ACM) Lisa 

Hollowell, Assistant City Manager (ACM) Jeffrey Wells, Economic 
Development Director (EDD) Teresa Campo (Staff Liaison), Senior Planner 
Keri Mendler, Planner I Patrick Blaszyk, and Grant Administrator Lisa Kerner 

 
Visitors: None 
 
Item No. 1.  Call to Order and Item No. 2. Welcome and Introductions.  Chair Anthony called 
the Winchester Revitalization Committee Meeting of October 2, 2025 to order at 3:02pm and 
welcomed everyone in attendance.  A quorum was present. 
 
Item No. 3.  Approval of Minutes – August 7, 2025 Regular Meeting.  The Minutes from the 
August 7, 2025 Regular Meeting were presented for review and approval.  Mayor Burns made a 
motion to approve the August 7, 2025 Minutes as presented.  Council Member Thompson 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
Item No. 4. Winchester Revitalization Updates.   
 

a) Land Design Status/Updates. 
 
i. Approval of change order by Land Design for the Winchester Redevelopment 

Initiative (Action Requested).  CM Watson introduced ACM Jeffrey Wells.  ACM 
Wells stated this past spring Council approved an abbreviated scope and contract for 
services to start renewed work on the Winchester redevelopment initiative.  
LandDesign is a consulting company heading up this project.  The initial contract was 
an abbreviated scope of work intended to get the project initiative moving forward.  

Page 2 of 28



 

 
Winchester Revitalization Committee Regular Meeting 

October 2, 2025 
Page 2 

 

Good progress has been made since spring of 2025, funds were included in the fiscal 
year 2026 budget to expand and continue the work to date.  Staff has worked with 
LandDesign to develop the expanded scope of services.  They include additional 
community engagement, Brownfield assistance, conceptual site grading, cut fill 
analysis, master plan and playbook which will include an overview of key findings 
and summary of the community engagement, fully illustrative master plan including 
the development area, linear park, and greenway, concept sketches and character 
imagery, graphic representation of key materials, fixtures and finishing, key 
recommendations for branding translated into concepts for the incorporation of 
historic community themes, wayfinding and storytelling elements, existing and 
proposed building opportunities narrative, horticultural study, and preliminary 
planting design, demolition erosion control, utilities grading and drainage studies and 
high level recommendations, order of magnitude cost estimate, phasing and 
implementation strategy, preliminary discussions with jurisdictional review agencies.  
The original abbreviated contract was for $58,000.00.  A recommendation from the 
Winchester Committee is being requested to move this to General Services and then 
to City Council for consideration.  This was for a change order to expand the scope 
of services by $144,000.00.  ACM Wells advised that in the budget process for fiscal 
year 2026, $200,000.00 was put into the fund as a resource and that resource was to 
move toward master planning for Winchester as well as for the site Brownfield 
mitigation.  We are using that project fund for both functions now and that is through 
what is called GB2001 the Winchester Redevelopment Fund.  He mentioned, 
$200,000.00 was in the fiscal year 2026 budget; right now the available budget was 
$262,109.59 and again the project fund was utilized for the master planning and 
Brownfield administration.  He also added LandDesign could overlap with Resolve 
(the company handling the Brownfields mitigation) and LandDesign was capable of 
doing the cut fill analysis and would assist with that and consult with Resolve.  That 
was an important piece to the Brownfields part of this process, so that would be 
something where they overlap.  Staff recommended approval of the change order and 
recommended forwarding it to the General Services Committee (immediately 
followed this meeting) and then ultimately to the review/recommendation of City 
Council where Council would be asked to approve and authorize the City Manager 
to execute the documents.  ACM Wells advised he was happy to answer any questions 
and informed the Committee the original scope was in their packet as well as the 
revised scope of services.  He also stated he was really excited about the progress that 
had been made so far and thought in the last four or five months good progress had 
been made and he was excited about moving forward into the community engagement 
stage.  Chair Anthony asked if anyone had any questions.  Mayor Burns asked about 
the numbers.  ACM Wells stated the original contract was $58,000.00 and the revised 
adds $144,000.00, which was the change order.  ACM Wells stated that would give 
a full scope of work to continue and get a completed master plan.  Mayor Burns asked 
if ACM Wells stated that was already allotted in the budget for this year, and ACM 
Wells stated yes sir.  Mayor Burns asked if a motion was needed, and Chair Anthony 
stated yes she needed a motion for the change order to expand the scope. 

Page 3 of 28



 

 
Winchester Revitalization Committee Regular Meeting 

October 2, 2025 
Page 3 

 

Action – Approval of Change Order (Revised Scope and Contract for Services) by 
Land Design.  Mayor Burns moved to authorize a change order to expand the scope of 
services for LandDesign for the Winchester Redevelopment to go forward to General 
Services Committee to then to City Council for approval.  Member McGinnis seconded 
the motion, which passed unanimously.  The Staff Report with attachments is attached 
as Exhibit A to these Minutes.  

 
b) Boundary Survey & Other Technical Document Updates.  EDD Campo stated SSA 

Sholar was not able to attend the meeting but informed her that he was working with the 
environmental attorney on this and indicated there was no change in the status of that 
project/no new updates. 

 
Item No. 5.  Winchester Avenue High School – Historial Research/Canvas Photo Design.  
EDD Campo stated Chair Anthony mentioned difficulty with people wanting to give up their 
artifacts and photos.  Today Chair Anthony received feedback indicating if the City would have a 
three-day turnaround on that memorabilia then they would consider allowing us to use them for 
documentation.  EDD Campo shared a plan to have Communications schedule a time that we could 
have the artifacts/pictures brought here, have them photographed in a quality environment and 
could then use those same photos to put on banners.  EDD Campo advised the purpose of that 
would be to allow a charrette type of event that could be mixed with the LandDesign outreach or 
the Committee could decide using an easy poll and rank which photos the Committee would like 
to use.  The Committee agreed they would like to make the decision among the photos, etc.   EDD 
Campo presented a statue of the Winchester school buffalo mascot from 1965 that Chair Anthony 
provided.  EDD Campo suggested Communications may be able to make a 3D photo of the statue 
so we could have the actual mascot model from the1960s.  Also, Chair Anthony provided her high 
school diploma from 1965 along with her graduation picture.  EDD Campo suggested an event 
where people could bring in artifacts/photos and quality photos would be taken and the items 
would be returned to the owner with a receipt that they were returned in the original condition.  
EDD Campo added SP Mendler was the staff member responsible for the historic preservation and 
would coordinate that event with the Communications team.  Mayor Burns inquired about the 
banners that would contain these photos.  CM Watson advised he had seen in the past, in Belmont, 
historic pictures that were placed on large vinyl panels that actually adhered to a wall on the outside 
of some of their historic buildings in downtown.  From his recollection of the Winchester 
Committee meetings, we would like to follow that same model.  He advised we could do the same 
thing except applying those to the walls inside the gym, especially in the foyer area and at the ends 
of the gym.  It would be like a canvas print but would be a vinyl print that actually adhered to the 
wall.  CM Watson stated it was a more permanent thing that adhered to the wall and he thought 
the comment he remembered from the last meeting was the spirit of all the kids that went to school 
there would be represented in those photos on the wall.  Chair Anthony stated she personally 
thought that was a neat thing and CM Thompson agreed.  Member Alsbrooks inquired if this was 
going to permanently be on the wall, was this going to be a material that was not going to fade 
from light after so many years?  CM Watson stated eventually vinyl was going to harden and crack 
but you would probably get 15 years out of it.  Member McGinnis stated it would be better inside 
than outside.  CM Watson advised the pictures had been on the outside of the buildings in Belmont 

Page 4 of 28



 

 
Winchester Revitalization Committee Regular Meeting 

October 2, 2025 
Page 4 

 

for probably about six or seven years and where the sun hit them, some of those were starting to 
crack and pieces were coming off, but inside of a protected building, you would probably get a lot 
longer life.  Mayor Burns inquired if you could change the pictures because it was vinyl and CM 
Watson stated there may be some that you would want to make a larger, single picture and then 
there may be some that you would make a giant collage.  CM Watson stated that would be neat 
too because it would make people want to stop and look at everything.  Mayor Burns stated for 
example the basketball team, etc.  Member McGinnis inquired if there would be a lot of pictures 
and if they would be taken out of the yearbook.  Campo stated she went to the library and took 
pictures of some of the yearbooks they had but that was not in a controlled environment, they were 
not picture quality in the retake, and we could not borrow them.  EDD Campo advised the 
Committee might be able to get the Mayor or a Council member to let the Committee borrow them 
and be entrusted with them, but not staff.  EDD Campo advised she believed the library staff would 
possibly be willing to bring them here during the event and let us photograph them in a controlled, 
lit environment, but what was shown at the previous meeting was sketches kids had done, poetry, 
the bands, some graduating classes, the glee club, cheer, and drill team, prom pictures, 
homecoming pictures, but again, they weren’t something that you could have transposed from 
what we were able to take and be able to do a quality print.  CM Watson indicated we were talking 
about inside the gym but inside the meeting room at the community center, the same thing could 
be done with community pictures; for example, school-specific pictures in the gym and community 
pictures in the community room.  Chair Anthony and CM Thompson stated that was a good idea.  
EDD Campo advised that adhering the banners to the wall may be problematic and to possibly 
consider getting framed canvas prints because the walls would have to be prepped in some way 
because they were not smooth.  Chair Anthony inquired if they were cement walls.  CM Watson 
indicated we should contact Belmont because they put them on the outside of a brick building and 
the vinyl was attached to the outside of the wall.  Mayor Burns advised there were certain types of 
vinyl that were thicker that would remove all those imperfections in the wall.  SP Mendler pulled 
up pictures on her phone of the pictures in Belmont and shared them with the Committee.  EDD 
Campo stated she would reach out to Belmont to ask where they got their banners and would plan 
an event to get photos for the Committee to view.   
 
EDD Campo advised that she did not need a formal action from the committee and would 
coordinate with SP Mendler and Communications to determine how to get the word out and gather 
the artifacts.  In addition, she would reach out to Belmont to find out more information about their 
banners and would also find out more information regarding art grants.  EDD Campo advised most 
of the art grants ran at the beginning of the year and were awarded mid-year and then the funds 
were exhausted; so it would open up again in January possibly, just depending on what the cost 
was, it may be very nominal.  
 
Item No. 6.  Brownfields Environmental Status/Remnant Properties Update.  ACM Wells 
spoke for SSA Sholar who was not present and indicated there were no new updates. 
 
Item No. 7.  Other Business (if any).  CM Watson asked ACM Hollowell to speak regarding the 
community center and the porch covering and what we might have in mind for getting some input 
on that project.  ACM Hollowell stated the front of the community center base had been installed.  

Page 5 of 28



 

 
Winchester Revitalization Committee Regular Meeting 

October 2, 2025 
Page 5 

 

The front of the building was going to have a  porch cover.  ACM Hollowell asked if the Committee 
wanted it flat or tapered.  She advised the original was being used at the pool, as it did not go with 
the design for the community center.  She added it worked perfectly there providing shade.  Also, 
she asked, if the Committee wanted rocking chairs on the front porch and added it would look 
homey and welcoming.  CM Watson asked ACM Hollowell if she could be ready to lead a 
discussion on that at the next meeting and maybe have some pictures of some different ideas and 
facilitate the discussion and get a consensus about what the committee would like to see there.  
ACM Hollowell indicated she would bring that to the next meeting.  Chair Anthony asked 
everyone to please go by and get an idea of the space so we could discuss at the next meeting. 
 
CM Watson updated the Committee on the old ceramics building and advised that KCOM out of 
Marshville has leased the space until January 15, 2026 for Christmas distribution in the Winchester 
community.  CM Watson encouraged the Committee to go by and see the interior rehabilitation of 
the building by City staff and volunteers.  He added, it has been cleaned out and the group has 
filled it with new clothes, new shoes, and other items for Christmas to benefit toddlers all the way 
up to teenagers.  Mayor Burns stated they are sponsored by Target, and Target donates supplies 
and everything is new.  CM Watson indicated the shop part of the building is about one-third full 
with what they call the big toys i.e. bicycles and other items and they will also have food 
distribution out of the shop portion of the building.  He advised it is phenomenal what they have 
done with the building so far.  Member Hall inquired what were the plans for that building going 
forward; was this going to be an annual thing for them in that location?  CM Watson stated the 
City is looking at how that building can be reused, it is an asset of the City and there were some 
space needs for operations.  He advised that originally we were considering centralizing 
permitting, permit review, engineering and functions, and maybe Code Enforcement; however, 
ACM Wells had done such a great job creating efficiencies in our processes and introducing 
changes to our policies;  bringing us from paper to electronic submittals and signatures that we did 
not need to use that building for that purpose anymore.  He advised the Fire Department was 
looking for a building because they had pretty serious space needs.  He also advised the Fire 
Department was writing a recommendation and proposal and he did not mind sharing with the 
Committee what they were planning.  He advised they needed space for logistics because they had 
uniforms and things that they had to issue to firemen and a lot of stuff they had to keep in back 
stock because they really did not have a place to house it.  He advised they had spare parts, the 
ends of hoses and knobs and everything that went on a firetruck from one end of the City to the 
other in every spare closet and all of these items needed to be in one space.  He advised the second 
use of the building would be their training division, so not only did we have training for new 
firefighters that go through about a six-month intense training program but there was continuing 
education for all of our firefighters that happened on a weekly basis and there was a nice-sized 
classroom over there and there was enough space to house that plus any of the other training.  He 
advised that also behind the gym was a weight room/workout room that was fully outfitted with 
brand new equipment that very rarely was used, so with the training program the fire department 
could use the weight room, the gym that is there, so that could be used for FD training activities.  
CM Watson also advised that he discussed with Chief Fowler that the pool could be used as part 
of the training for swimming laps, and there were very few places were you had a pool, a gym, 
and a weight room right next to your training facility.  CM Watson also added a fire marshal’s 

Page 6 of 28



 

 
Winchester Revitalization Committee Regular Meeting 

October 2, 2025 
Page 6 

 

office could be located there, keeping activity constant.  The City’s operations were space-
constrained, and he was delivering on City Council’s directive to find the best use of the facilities 
so we were not spending money building new buildings and incurring new debt, and this plan was 
an effective use of the buildings that we owned and would accomplish what we were here to 
accomplish to provide services at the lowest cost possible.  He advised that was his challenge, and 
that was his thought process regarding this plan.  He also advised he had never seen Chief Fowler 
get too excited about anything, but he was excited about this. 
 
CM Watson advised the last thing item regarding that building was that the next week, we were 
planning to remove all the boards off the windows and start the window replacement, painting, 
and the rehab.  Mayor Burns added he was looking forward to seeing the finished work and stated 
he went in there the other day and took a look at the old space with KCOM and the windows being 
replaced and opened up would make the building look entirely different.  Member Hall advised 
the windows were frosted and asked if they would be replaced with frosted or clear.  CM Watson 
indicated some were frosted and some were clear and he did not have the specifications regarding 
the glass and that he let staff make those determinations.  CM Watson also indicated the roof would 
be replaced in the spring. 
 
Mayor Burns stated in regards to KCOM , last year from what Mrs. Marsh said, they served 1200 
people and they were going to be able to serve almost 1000 more this year, using the City’s 
building.  CM Watson stated they shared their plan, and when he visisted yesterday, there were 
about 12 people working and they looked like they were having a big time.  He stated it was really 
heartwarming to see all the smiles and the laughter and the joking and the conversations that were 
happening and he was glad the new life was being breathed back in that building. 
 
Member McGinnis stated she didn’t know a whole lot about the project and she thought there were 
a lot of people out there who knew a whole lot less than she dids and she was wondering when we 
were going to allow the broader community to focus on the project, like a sign showing future 
plans or when people would be included for input.  She indicated she had never been able to go to 
any of the walks but this belonged to the whole City and they needed to be involved and asked if 
there were any plans to take the communication further.  Chair Anthony inquired weren’t we 
having a public forum?  Campo stated yes we were having that as part of the LandDesign outreach 
and there would be two different outreaches planning and community.  Member McGinnis 
inquired if people from outside of the Winchester community were drawn into that?  She stated 
when she spoke to people about it, they asked her what she was talking about and she wanted 
everyone to know this was a big thing that was happening and she did not know if this was right 
or not but someone told her that a lot of the Winchester property was rental property and asked if 
that was true?  Chair Anthony advised yes, a lot of it was rental property.  Member McGinnis 
inquired so those people would not be as involved and asked if the people that lived on her side of 
town could be made aware of what was going on.  ACM Wells advised the Committee welcomed 
input from all City residents so it would go through the City’s communication channels which 
would go out to anybody that had access to that; and he advised he thought specific groups from 
the Winchester community would be targeted as well to make sure, so he saw it as two fold, with 
targeting specific folks from the Winchester community to be able to come to that but then also 

Page 7 of 28



 

 
Winchester Revitalization Committee Regular Meeting 

October 2, 2025 
Page 7 

 

welcoming the entire City to come to community engagement sessions when those are planned.  
Member McGinis inquired if notices could be put in places like the J Ray Shute Center and bulletin 
boards for example, and ACM Wells advised flyers could be placed at the community centers and 
of course, the social media channels would be notified.  Member McGinnis inquired if Michael 
Wayne O’Neill from the Enquirer Journal could do a feature article.  ACM Wells agreed that was 
a great idea and also another good opportunity to clue them in to the Winchester page that is on 
the City’s website that staff maintains as well.  Member Hall inquired about the Winchester page, 
and SP Mendler advised she manages the webpage and would send everyone the link so when 
asked about the project, the link could be forwarded.  SP Mendler advised it was under the City 
Manager’s page and Strategic Projects and featured were the site visit from July and a little history 
from this year’s meetings.  She also advised the other thing that was really good about the page 
was that it included the link that LandDesign sent out a few months ago after the site visit, so 
people could go look at the area as well as all of the artifacts that were found on the site visit.  
Member McGinnis advised she would like it if there were something on the premises that said 
something like Future Home of the project, like a billboard, etc.  CM Watson indicated we were 
planning on doing that once LandDesign had the layout finished.  ACM advised we could put 
Future Home of Winchester Revitalization Initiative, for more information see the QR code and it 
then would take you to that website.  SP Mendler added it could be similar to the Concord Avenue. 
sign. 
 
ACM Hollowell mentioned:  1) the Enquirer Journal ran an article after the committee’s site visit 
in July, so they were in tune, and also 2) the City has a podcast called “Monroe Living Our City at 
Work” and an episode was about to be released on Winchester, the redevelopment, the 
revitalization, and there had been several interviews already and the communications team was 
putting that together.  She also advised that podcast covered a lot of different things about City 
operations, so one might find that interesting; but we do want to promote this in every way that we 
can through communications and the podcast, and the Enquirer Journal was definitely in the know. 
 
Item No. 8.  Adjourn.  There being no further business, Council Member Thompson made a 
motion to adjourn the Winchester Revitalization Committee Meeting of October 2, 2025.  Member 
Hall seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:51pm. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
                   Surluta Anthony, Chair 
 

       Attest: 
 
 

       ________________________________   
                    Angie Carnes, Clerk      
 

Page 8 of 28



EXHIBIT A

Page 9 of 28



Page 10 of 28



Page 11 of 28



Page 12 of 28



Page 13 of 28



Page 14 of 28



Page 15 of 28



Page 16 of 28



Page 17 of 28



Page 18 of 28



Page 19 of 28



Page 20 of 28



Page 21 of 28



Page 22 of 28



Page 23 of 28



Page 24 of 28



Page 25 of 28



Page 26 of 28



Page 27 of 28



Page 28 of 28


	 Meeting Items
	1. Call to Order
	2. Welcome and Introductions
	3. Approval of Minutes - October 2, 2025 Regular Meet
	2025-10-02_WRC Regular Meeting Minutes

	4. Winchester Revitalization Updates
	 a)  Winchester Clean Up/Ground Penetrating Radar
	 b)  LandDesign Update
	 c)  Boundary Survey & Other Technical Document Upd

	5. Brownfield's Environmental Status/Remnant Properti
	6. Winchester Ave High School - Historical Research/C
	7. Discussion - Covering at Front of Winchester Commu
	8. Other Business (if any)
	9. Adjourn


